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' United States Attorney
Eastern District of New York

Mailing

TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL

The Honorable Carcl B. Amon
United States District Court
Eastern District of New York
225 Cadman Plaza East -

Brooklyn, N.Y. 11201
Re: United St
Criminal

Dear Judge Amon:

_ The defendant Dacod
by this Court on September 25
submits this letter pursuant
Sentencing Guidelires Manual
discretion, to impose a sente
Guidelines range of 87 to 108

Mr. Gilani was arre
connection with his role in =&
Pakistan and distribute it in

Cine Pierrepont Plazn
Broaklps. New York 11201

dddresst 147 Fizetepont Sireer

Brooklyn, New Yark 11201

September 22, 19938

Ltes v. Dacod Gilani |
ncket No, 97- CBAL

Gilani is scheduled to be sentenced
t 1998. The government respectfully
Fo 16 U.s.C. § 3553(e} and

% 5K1.1 to permit this Court, in its
hee below the applicable Sentencing
months.

sted on February 6, 1997, in
conspiracy to import heroin from
the United States. ©Cn May &, 18387,

pursuant to 3 cooperation agr

conspiracy to import and distpibute heroin,

ement, Mr. Gilani pleaded guilty to
in viclation of Title

21, United States Code, Sectibns 846 and %63,

Under the terms of ﬁisragreement, Mr. Gilani provided

substantial assistance to the

and prosecutions detailed.below.

complete information about hi

conviction as well as hls other criminal actioms.

provided informatien abouft hi
the other individuals involve
the suppliers of the heroin i
debriefed at the United State

governrment in the investigations
_ First, Mr. Gilani provided
own role in the offense of

He further
co—-defendant and about
in the conspiracy, specifically

Pakistan. He was extensively

Attorney’s Office about his

involvement in this and otherfnarcotics.related offenses.

Second, Mr. Gileanl engaged in

extensive proactive investigation

with the DEA, which invelved ?umerous recorded conversations with
1

f

P. 002
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various subjects and the sei

TEL:718 27 6320

re of approximately 2.5 kilograms

of heroin from four individuals and the convictions of three
ficking offenses.

individuals for narcotics tr

In late January 1%
Administration (the "DER®"] 1
confidential infarmarnt in Pa
heroin from Pakistan to the
Gilani. Under the direction
Mr. Gllani in New York and ar
heroin to Mr. Gilani and Mr.
New York. The DEA arrested
had paid the informant 353,000
suitcase which was supposed t

Within days of hils
wished t¢ cooperate with the

, the Drug Enforcement
Pakistan became aware that a

istan had been contacted to bring

ited States to deliver toc Mr.
f the DEA, the informant contacted
anged to transfer the supposed
ilani’s associate & in
and Mr. gGilani after they
and taken possessicn of the
contain a kilogram hercin.!

rrest, Mr.

overnment. In proffer zessions

with the government, Mr. Gilani admitted to and explained his

involvement in the plan to import and distribhute the heroihi

Gilani indicated that he

The

F. 003

information Gilani gave about|the instant cffense was consistent
with the information cbserved|by the DEAR agents and relayved by
the confidential informant. Fhe information Mr. Gilani. gave
about the suppliers cf the hefoin was largely corroborated hy
investigation by the DEA. Mr| Gilani also detailed the role of
nis co-defendant MM and rfurther discussed prior heroln deals

that he and QA had tugethe
importation that the gcvernme

engaged in, inecluding one
t was able to corroberatz through

the debriefing of another def dant in a separate heroin

Importation case.

In additicn ko prov dlng information abcut the offense,

Mr. Gilani described his own
suppliers and accomplices.
that he had distributed appro.

during his career as a narceti

Beginning in April |
make consensually monitored p}j
Gilani had previously engaged
to purchase hercin from them.
Mr. Gilani that each phone cal
On several occasions, despite
Mr. Gilani placed calls to tay
prior contact with the DEA. 7

! Mr. Gilani was previ

importation in 1988. 1In that
and received a substantial red

rlor unlawful conduct and his
Gllani informed the goverhment

;lmately 15 kilograms of heroin

¢s dealer.

997, the DEA directed Gilani to

one calls to individuals with whom

in drug transactiens in an effort
The DEA specifically instructed

1 was to be monitored by the DEA.
the DEA’'s specific instructions,
gets without direction from or

hose calls were not recorded by the

ously arrested for heroin
case, he cooperated with LDEA agents
uction in his sentence after

receiving a 5K1.1 letter from

fthe United States Attorney’s Office

for the Eastern District ¢f Pennsylvania.
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DEA. Mr. Gilani informed the
conversations soon after he p

In August 1997, Mr.
facilitate his work with the
contact with the DEA since hi
cooperative and reliable and
very close knit Pakistani nar
York. He has met with the DE]
requested that he do so.

In February 1988, Mg.

the direction of the DEA, to
heroin traffickers who send h
a2llay the concerns of certain
becoming suspicious about Mr.
people who had been arrested
from Pakistan. Although no a
Mr. Gilani’s return to the Un
agents to open investigations

]

B. F Gilani

=]

has helpad the DEA to infiltrate the

TEL:718 27 6320

DEA of the substance of the
laced the calls.,

PEA. He has remained in daily
5 release and his been extremely
totics dealing community in New
b agents whenever thay have

Gilani traveled to Pakistan at
evelop intelligence on Pakistani
sroin to the United States and to
Pakistani traftffickers who were
Gllani’s connections to several

ln the United Staztes anc his absence
lrasts or seizures took place after
ted S5tates, the trip allowed the
cn several new targets. :

's Coopreration

tion assisted in the convicticn of

Mr. Gilani's cCoOpers;
led to the arrest

r

trafficking charges,

f 4 individuals on narcotics

the conviction of 3 of these individuals,

and the seizure of approximategly 2.5 kilograms (net} of hercin.

Throughout his cooperatlon, M.

with tha DEA. He met with th
asked to do so and engaged in
monitored calls.

During the course of
government, Mr. Gilani fully e

co-deferdant
referenced above.
about
was able to corroborate and i

a2s made aware of the f
testify at his trial. The go
eancouraged a disposition of t
was sentenced by this Court t

2.

Between early June
incarcerated, Mr. Gilani made
individual named
friendly while he and
During these conversations,

Wil

Gilani was extremely cooperative
agent of the DEA whenever he was
a total of approximately 100

his debriefings with the

plained his role and that of his
e herein impertation conspiracy
ided the government with details
transactions which the government
ended to introduce at trial.

t that Mr. Gilani was prepared to
roment helieves that knowledge
case prior to trial.

120 months in prison.

d mid-July of 1887, while

series of telephone calls teo an
h whom Mr. Gilani had become

are in jail together in 1995,
told Mr. Gilani that he had

.

P. 004

Gilani was released from custody teo-
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agreed ta sell Mr. Gilani two

0@ per kilogram. arranged
elivered to an undercover DEA agent
5 partner. Later, (il arranged
to deliver a kilagram of heroin to
caver DEA agent.

access to heroin and ?
kilograms of hercin at $85,0
for a sample of hergin to be
posing as Mr. Gilani's busin
for his nephew,
Mr. Gilani and thils same und

f hercin was deliversd, both
were arrested and indicted on
ig Stat V.

. pleaded gquilty and faces
a Sentencing Guidelines rangej of 70 to B7 months in priscn at his

upcoming sentencing pefore Jupgge Dearie. —r'aised
entrapment as a defense and wps acguitted after trial in July of

this year.

After the kilogram

and his nephew
narcotics distri { harg

was the fovernment's primary witness in the
During trial preparation Mr., Gilanl was
He met with the government on pumerocus

eral hours at ime, He provided
0 respend to entrapment
ted many hours to listenlng to and

the Punjabi language telephone

end S Mr. Gilani Wworked

. the government’s translator and
as she prepared the final

elieves that Mr. Gilani's testimeny

Mr. Gilani
trial against
highly cooperative.
occaslons for stretches of se
useful suggesticns zbhout how
defense. Mr. Gilani also dew
revising the transcripticns o
cenversations between Al £
harmoniocusly with Ms.
again provided wvaluakle input
transeripts. The government
was truthfunl.

for several hours in the

rebuttal case. Mr. Gilani
criminal conduct, his relatioaship
ion of the sale by N to Mr.
of heroin.

Mr. Gilani testifie
government's case-in-chief an
testifie out his own prior
withﬂ and the negotia
Gilani of kilogram quantities

2.

Mr. Gilani was alsol|involved in the investigation and
in late

successful prosecutions of P and

1897 and early 1958. The appiehension of followed a
series of telephcne calls thafi Mr, Gilani made to a sowrce of
heroin in Pakistan. The Pakistani scurce informed Mr. Gilani
that he could provide a half-kilogram of heroin from a supply of
heroin already in the United States. The source put Mr. Gilani
in touch with F. who HLE\ter delivered apprcximately a
nglf—kilogram o erolh tc a confidential informant posing as Mr.
Gilani's cousin. was jarrested by DEA agents and then
indicted on heroin distributi charges. Unitad States w
pleaded guilty and faces a

46 to 57 months in prison.

Jentencing Guidelines range o

grew out eof a series of
- Gilani learned that an

The apprehension of
telephone calls during which
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|
|

individual in Pakistan had agproximately one and one-half
kilograms of hexroir at a heot in New Jersey. Acting under the

direction of DER agents, Mr. [Gilani arranged for another
confidential informant to pi W that
informant arrived at the hot in New Jersey,ﬁwas
present and provided a sample; of the hercin. was then

arrested by DEA agents, whe selzed over a kilogram of hergin.
as indicted on narpotics distributicon charges, pleaded

guilty, and was sentenced to M1 months impriscnment by Judge
Seybert, nited Stat: v

k up the heroin.

Based on the informption, assistance znd testimony Mr.
Gilani provided, he has provided substantial assistance to the
government in the investigatidn and prosecution ¢f others. The
agents and supervisor who worked with Mr, Gilani found him to be
reliable and forthcoming. The arrests and seizure of 2.5
kilograms of hercin would notihave taken place without Mr.
Gilani’s assistance. On thisg|basis, the United States
respectfully moves the Court to depart downward in sentencing

nim.
Because scme of the|targets identified with the

assistance of Mr, Gilani are &till under investigation, tke
government respectfully requests this letter be filed under seal.

Respectfully submitted,

ZACHARY W. CARTER
United States Attorney
Eastern District of New York

cc: Clerk of the Court {CBA)
Eastern District of New Yprk

Howard R. Leader, Esq.
(via telecopier)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

*——————-———————‘—X

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA APPLICATION TC UNSEAL
AND RELEASE

- against -

97-CR-214 (CBA)

DAOOD GILANT,

Defendant.
__________________X

Brendan G. King, an Assistant United States Attorney
for the Eastern District of New York, hereby applies to the Court
for Orders: unsealing the government’s sentencing letter filed
pursuant to Section 5K1.1 of the United States Sentencing
Guidelines ("5K1l.1 Sentencing Letter”) in the above-referenced
matter, subject to the government’'s proposed redactions set forth
in Attachment “A”7; unsealing and permitting the release to the
United States Attorneys Offices for the Eastern District of New
York {the “EDNY”)} and to the Northern District of Illincis (the
“NDIL”)} of an undated letter, from Drug Enforcement
Administration Special Agent Jiminez to Chris J. Stanten, Chief
Probation Officer for the Southern District of New York (the “DEA
Letter”) and the related Court Order dated January 27, 2011; and
permitting the release of the defendant’s 1988 Presentencing
Investigation Report (“PSR”} from the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania (the “EDPA”) contained in the Probaticn Department’s

files to the EDNY and NDIL. We make these requests for the
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limited purpose of reviewing these documents the criminal matter
in the Northern District of Illinois, and handling the documents
consistent with the government’s obligations enumerated in Brady

v. Maryvland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963) and Giglio v. United States, 405

U.S. 150 (1972).
In suppcrt of this application I state the following:

1. I am an Assistant United étates Attorney in the
Office of Loretta E. Lynch, United States Attorney for the
Eastern District of New York and am familiar with the facts in
this case.

Background

2. The defendant was arrested on February 6, 1997 for
conspiracy to import heroin from Pakistan to the United States.
On May 6, 1997, the defendant pleaded guilty, pursuant to a
cooperation agreement, to conspiracy to import and distribute
heroin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections
846 and 963. On September 25, 1998, pursuant to the government’s
5K1.1 Sentencing Letter, dated September 22, 1998, the Court
sentenced the defendant to 15 months’ imprisonment to be followed
by a term of 5 years of supervised release.

3. On November 16, 2001, this Court granted a joint
motion by the defendant and the government {including the
Department of Probation) for early termination of the defendant’s
5 year term of Supervised Release, pursuant to Title 18, United

States Code, Section 3583 (e) (1).
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4. On October 3, 2009, the defendant was arrested by
the Federal Bureau of Investigation for conspiracy to murder and
maim in a foreign country and providing material support to
terrorists.? This investigation was conducted by the NDIL. On
December 7, 2009, an Information was filed in the United States
District Court, Northern District of Illinois, charging him with
censpiracy to bomb places of public use in India, conspiracy to
commit murder and maiming in India, murde:, material support of a
terrorist act in India, conspiracy to commit murder and maiming
in Denmark, material support of a terrorist act in Denmark and
material support of a designated foreign terrorist organization.

See United States v. David Coleman Headley, also known as “Daoocd

Gilani”, Criminal Docket No. 09-CR-930. ©On January 14, 2010, a
Superseding Indictment was filed, adding additional defendants.
On March 18, 2010, the defendant pleaded guilty and subsequently
agreed to cooperate with the govermment. A trial of a remaining
defendant, Tahawwur Rana (“Rana”)}, 15 scheduled to commence on
May 16, 2011.

Redacted 5K1.1 Sentencing Letter

5. The government is obligated to disclose as

potential Brady/Giglio information, any benefit that a government

witness has received from the government. This includes, among

"The defendant changed his name from “Dacod Saleem Gilani”
to “David Coleman Headley” in or about 2006.
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other things, a cooperation agreement and 5K1.1 sentencing
letter.

6. Ag discussed above, on September 22, 1998, the
government filed with this Court a 5K1.1 Sentencing Letter to
advise the Court of the substantial assistance that was provided
by the defendant in that c¢riminal matter. This letter was placed
under seal by the Court. In a trial commencing May 16, 2011, the
defendant is scheduled to testify as a government witness. As a
result, the government will disclose to the trial defendant,
Rana, the defendant’s 5K1.1 Sentencing Letter, a redacted copy of
which is attached hereto as Attachment “A”. The government notes
that the proposed redactions relate to the names of the
defendant’s co-conspirators and the former Assistant United
States Attorneys that prosecuted the defendant and his co-
conspirators in that c¢riminal matter. The government seeks
these redactions for the limited purpose of protecting those
parties’ identities. The government believes that these proposed
redactions will achieve that goal, while not diminishing the
government’s Brady and Giglio obligations. Therefore, the
government respectfully requests an order from the Court
unsealing a redacted version of the government’s 5K1.1 Sentencing
Letter.

DEA Letter
7. On November 16, 2001, a hearing was held before

this Court, at which time a joint motion was made for the early



Case 1:97-cr-00214-CBA Document 79 Filed 03/04/11 Page 10 of 13 PagelD #: 33

termination of the defendant's term of Supervised Release,
pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3583(e) (1). In
support of the motion, c¢ounsel for the defendant provided the
Court with a document that appeared to highlight the proactive
efforts at cooperaticn that the defendant had engaged in while cn
Supervised Release. {See Dkt. $#73 at 3, Transcript of Criminal
Cause For Conference, November 16, 2001). We believe that the
DEA Letter is attached toc the Court’s Order dated January 27,
2011. In light of the government’s Brady and Giglic obkligations,
the government seeks access tc the DEA Letter and the related
Cocurt Order dated January 27, 2011, soc that the government may
inspect that letter and make all appropriate disclosure
determinations.

1988 EDPA Presentencing Investigation Report

8. In the trial scheduled tc commence on May 16,
2011, Rana has moved the court in the Northern District of
Illineis for an in camera inspection of twe PSRs related to the
defendant arising from his two prior cenvictions, in particular,

his convictions in United States v. Gilani, 97 CR 214 (E.D.N.Y.)

(hereafter, the “EDNY PSR”} and United States v. Gilani, 88 CR

286 (E.D. Pa.) (hereafter, the “EDPA PSR"). It was argued that
the PSRs from these twc cases may contain impeachment materials
which the government is cbligated to disclose to the defense
pursuant to its Brady and Giglio cbligations. The government had

no objection to an in camera inspection of the PSRs by the court.
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Accordingly, the government provided the court with the EDNY PSR.
The court subsequently ruled that a portion of that EDNY PSR be
disclosed.

9. With respect tce the EDPA case, the government
explained tco the court in the Northern District of Illincis that
it did not have a copy of the EDPA PSﬁ in its possession. To
date, the governmment has been unsuccessful in locating that EDPA
PSR. The government has recently learned, however, that the
Probation Department in the EDNY has a copy of the EDPA PSR case
in its files. Therefore, the government respectfully requests an
order allowing the release to the NDIL of a copy of the
defendant’s 1988 EDPA PSR for the purpose of submitting the 19883
EDPA PSR to the court for in camera inspection in that criminal
matter.

Conclusion

10. For the foregoing reasons, the government
respectfully requests corders: unsealing the government’s
sentencing letter filed pursuant to Section 5K1.1 Sentencing
Letter, subject to the government's proposed redactions set forth
in Attachment “A”; unsealing and permitting the release to the
United States Attorneys Offices for the EDNY and NDIL the DEA
Letter and the related Court Order dated January 27, 2011; and

permitting the release of the defendant’s 1988 PSR from the EDPA
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contained in the Probation Department’s files to the EDNY and

NDIL.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
March 1, 2011

/s/
Robert L. Capers
Brendan G. King
Assistant U.S. Attorneys
(718) 254-6346/6006
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Attachment “A”



